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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Layton Castle is set on seven acres of flatland which fronts the Ouachita River,
Although the house was once a part of a large plantation, suburban development has
engulfed all but the present acreage. All of the out buildings and workers' quarters
have been lost except for a small brick wine house with an attached garage, and a
family cemetery.

Despite the loss of acreage, the house still retains its historic setting because
large live oak trees effectively screen it from surrounding intrusions. Also, seven
acres provides a broad enough spread of land that the house and the intrusions cannot
be seen in the same view.

The '"castle'" itself has approximately 60 rooms, with the major living spaces located
on the second floor. It began in 1814 as a broad two story raised cottage with a

hip roof. In about 1850, an addition was built to the northeast side which was
enlarged in the late 19th century. This created a square, three story tower with

a mansard roof which was connected to the old raised cottage by galleries. In 1912

a massive rebuilding and remodeling program took place in which the present house was
largely created. A gracious, 15 feet wide hall was built behind the raised cottage.
This connected a new large dining room and kitchen at one end of the house with a

new living room at the other end. A third story was created over the northern end of
the house which became part of a large open space where balls were often given. New
front and rear galleries were built and a two story carriage port was added at the
 main entrance on the north facade. A large columnar porch of similar design was built
- on the east facade.

“Much of the house is supported by round brick columns with arches running between.
Floors are supported by heavy wood joists which run between one row of arches and the
next. The only bearing walls are in the mid and late 19th century portion of the house.
The old raised cottage has been restructured with brick arches and columns. Probably
only a few of the old walls remain in the second story. In the circa 1912 remodeling,
the entire house was reroofed with a pair of massive hip roofs which were covered with
red tile. Some of the lites were made of glass to provide for skylights.

The exterior of the house was designed to convey the idea of a castle. This is
achieved through the use of tall round turrets at either end of the building which
create strong asymmetrical massing. This feeling is also achieved by the extensive

use of corbel tables, But the exterior also has something of the character of an
industrial building. Much of this is due to the plain brick walls and the use of
warehouse-type windows with brick segmental arches and plate glass sashes. A most
unusual feature is the two story carriage port with its round brick columns and 15

feet arches. There is no record of any architect involved in the circa 1912 remodeling.
Family tradition has it that the work was designed by the builder in conjunction with
the owner. Perhaps this is why the exterior resembles a castellated warehouse.

The interiors are large, but sparsely decorated. The only noteworthy features are a
pair of oak Queen Ann Revival mantles in the living room.

The boundaries of the nominated area were chosen to encompass the house and the
surrounding seven acres, which is all that remains intact of the original plantation.
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Since the circa 1912 remodeling, there have been three principal alterations to the
house. These are: 1) The ground floor and the mid and late 19th century portion of
the house have been converted into apartments. But this does not significantly
impact on the major interior spaces -- the living room, the hall or the dining room.
2) At one time there was a staircase leading from the carriage port up to the living
room. This has been removed, but it had only a minor impact on the living room.

In any case, the interiors are not a major source of significance. 3) The galleries
have been glazed in and incorporated into the rooms in the southern end of the house.
But the impact this had on the exterior walls was minimal. Prior to the glass, the
galleries had mounted screens. They were never open.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Layton Castle, with approximately 60 rooms, is probably the largest residence ever
built in Monroe. Its owner and its builder used simple industrial architecture to
create an elaborate castellated mansion -- a local landmark and architectural folly
that is probably unique to the state.

Layton Castle enjoys a lesser degree of significance as the home of Henry Bry, a
native of Geneva, Switzerland who immigrated to the Ouachita region in 1804. Bry,

by the time of Louisiana statehood in 1812, had successfully served as parish judge,
legislator in the House of Representatives, as a member of the convention to write
Louisiana's first constitution, and as advisor to territorial governor W. C. C.
Claiborne on the affairs of the Ouachita District. Bry purchased approximately 500
acres in 1814 and built Mulberry Grove Plantation,which became known as Layton Castle
after the circa 1912 remodeling.
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'VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The property is bounded on the west by Grand Street, on the north by Texas Street,
and on the south by Morris Drive. The eastern boundary runs*paralell to = -
Jackson Street 80 feet to the east.
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